
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764693  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS IS AN INFORMAL MEETING OF  
THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL 
 

Committee - POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL 
 
Date & Time - Tuesday, 18 January 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue    - The meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and 
    streamed live, via the following link:   
    www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/ 
 
 
 

Membership of the Policy Development Panel: 
 
Councillors: J Avery, A C Beal, F Biggadike, H J W Bingham, M D Booth, H Drury, 
R A Gibson, M Hasan, J D McLean, P A Redgate, J L Reynolds, G T D Rudkin, 
G P Scalese (Vice-Chairman), S-A Slade, S C Walsh and A R Woolf (Chairman) 
 
Substitute members on the Policy Development Panel may be appointed only from 
members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual meetings. 
 
Quorum: 6 
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to silent 

mode 

 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   10 January 2022 

http://www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/


A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings 
(copies enclosed): 
 

 

a)   Policy Development Panel -  
16 November 2021 (enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
3 - 14) 

b)   Special Policy Development Panel -  
14 December 2021 (enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
15 - 18) 

3.  Declaration of Interests. -  
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation. 
 

 

4.  Questions asked under Standing Order 6  
 

 

5.  Tracking of recommendations -  
To consider responses of the Cabinet reports of the Panel.   
 

 

6.  Items referred from the Performance Monitoring Panel  
 

 

7.  Key Decision Plan -  
To note the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).   
 

(Pages 
19 - 26) 

8.  Policy Register -  
To note the current Policy Register (SHDC Policy Register and 
Partnership Summary attached). 
 

(Pages 
27 - 32) 

9.  Fuel Card Policy -  
To note the new Fuel Card Policy (report of Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhoods enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
33 - 40) 

10.  Policy Development Panel Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel 
(report of the Assistant Director- Governance and Monitoring Officer 
enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
41 - 48) 

11.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. -  
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.   

 

 

 



- 16 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 16 November 2021 at 
6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
A R Woolf (Chairman) 

G P Scalese (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

J Avery 
F Biggadike 
M D Booth 
R A Gibson 
 

M Hasan 
J L King 
J D McLean 
P A Redgate 
 

G T D Rudkin 
S-A Slade 
S C Walsh 
 

In Attendance:  The Assistant Director - Strategic Projects, Head of Public Protection, 
Programme Manager and Strategic and Operational Property Manager, the 
Information Governance Officer, the Climate Change and Environment Manager, the 
Democratic Services Team Leader and the Democratic Services Officer.  
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A C Beal and 
J L Reynolds  
 
 
 Action By 

17. MINUTES   

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the Policy 
Development Panel held on 21 September 2021. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the minutes be signed as a correct record.  

 

   

18. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were none.   

   

19. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   

  

 There were none.   

   

20. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS   

  

 There were none.   

   

21. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 PANEL  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.a)



- 17 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

22. KEY DECISION PLAN   

  

 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan dated 1 
November 2021. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan be noted.  

 

   

23. POLICY REGISTER UPDATE   

  

 The Panel gave consideration to the Policy Register. 
 

The Chairman noted that: 

• updates on several policies were to be presented at the 
current meeting; and 

• as a result of SHDC’s new strategic partnership with 
Boston and East Lindsey District Councils, some of the 
policies were to merge across the new partnership and 
others were to remain place-based with South Holland 
District Council. This would be an evolving process and a 
structure was to be produced in due course.  

o The Programme Manager – Commercialisation 
stated that when policies became due for review, 
this would take place at SHDC but that opportunities 
would also be identified for any policies that could 
be reviewed across the partnership. Sovereignty 
would be maintained but efficiencies and synergies 
would be sought with the other two authorities.   

• The Chairman noted that the design of reports across the 
partnership was to be synchronised in due course. 

 
The Panel considered the Policy Register and gave the following 
comments: 

• Could the policies be highlighted that were due to be 
reviewed across the partnership? 

o The Chairman confirmed that future iterations of the 
report would state which policies were to be 
reviewed jointly or on a stand-alone basis. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CG  

   

24. DATA PROTECTION POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistance Director – 
Governance which asked the Panel to note the revised Data 

 

Page 4



- 18 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

Protection Policy. 
 

The Information Governance Officer introduced the report and 
stated that the Data Protection Policy had been approved by 
Cabinet on 29 May 2018 which had included the following key 
points : 

• that the new draft Data Protection Policy, Data Security 
Breach Procedure and Response Procedures for Data 
Subject Requests be approved and adopted; and 

• that the Shared Executive Manager and Data Protection 
Officer be authorised to make amendments to the Policy 
and Procedures so far as was necessary to reflect 
legislative changes, emerging guidance and to incorporate 
links to other relevant documents. 

 
The Information Governance Officer stated that the minor 
amendments to the Data Protection Policy had reflected: 

• changes made to departmental names;  

• changes made to legislation; and 

• that intranet links had been included.  
 
The following changes had been made to the document since 
publication of the agenda: 

• EEC had changed to EEA on the front page; and 

• For simplicity, a stated number of countries had been 
removed and replaced with ‘member states of the EU and 
the free countries of the European Trade Association’. 

 
The Chairman confirmed that a Task Group had existed which 
had been dormant; the policy had been reviewed annually; and 
that the policy amendments had been minor.  
 
AGREED: 
 

1) That the recommended revisions to the Data Protection 
Policy be noted; and 

 
2) That, as in line with the delegation agreed at Cabinet on 29 

May 2018, the Data Protection Officer make amendments 
to the Policy and Procedures so far as is necessary to 
reflect legislative changes, emerging guidance and to 
incorporate links to other relevant documents.  

   

25. DRAFT CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Climate Change and 
Environment Manager to gain Member input into the draft Climate 
Change Strategy prior to wider public/stakeholder consultation. 

 

Page 5



- 19 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 
 

The Climate Change and Environment Manager introduced the 
report which provided background to the Draft Climate Change 
Strategy for the geographical area covered by the new South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (SELCP). The Strategy 
had looked beyond the partnership’s operations and had 
considered the wider issues of Climate Change within local 
communities.  
 
The officer presented a background of the role and report: 

• The role of Climate Change Environment Manager for East 
Lindsey had commenced in April 2020 when a new 
corporate priority for Climate Change and the Environment 
had been established; 

• an Environment Policy had been implemented which set 
out the framework for the corporate priority;  

• the strategic alliance with Boston in Autumn 2020 had 
prompted a similar process and Boston had adopted an 
Environment Policy;  

• carbon reduction plans had been a priority for Boston and 
East Lindsey;  

• climate change had not been within South Holland’s 
Corporate Strategy, but the emergence of the new 
partnership had given the opportunity for South Holland to 
be included in the Strategy at an initial level and developed 
over time. The Strategy was in the draft and developmental 
stages, and further opportunities for feedback had been 
made available. 

 
Pending approval of the strategy at Cabinet on 14 December 
2021, a South Holland consultation process would commence in 
January 2022. 
 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 

• The Chairman thanked the officer for the presentation. 
Members acknowledged the Draft Climate Change Policy 
had emerged from the new partnership and had been 
much welcomed; 

• Members asked whether consultation feedback and 
learning obtained from Boston and East Lindsey authorities 
could be shared with South Holland. 

o The Climate Change and Environment Manager 
confirmed this would be possible, and that when 
available, the online consultation link would be sent 
to members. Initial findings were to be presented to 
Cabinet on 14 December 2021. 

• Could consultation in South Holland involve a physical 

Page 6



- 20 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

presence at market stalls? This method of consultation had 
previously delivered successful results. 

o The Climate Change and Environment Manager 
confirmed this would be possible. 

• The Chairman asked whether the consultation involved 
businesses as well as the general public. Had there been 
an optimum number of stakeholders that needed to be 
involved? 

o The Climate Change and Environment Manager 
replied that businesses had been a key area. The 
knowledge of Economic Development teams would 
be needed to establish key business contacts. The 
business community had embraced this approach in 
Boston.  

o Regarding stakeholders, there had not been a pre-
defined set-up. Meetings had been taking place with 
the Place Based Climate Change Network who had 
assisted commissions with planning –templates and 
guidance had been provided for steering/task and 
finish groups. Themes needed to be established 
which identified how many people needed to be 
involved.  

• Members questioned whether the aim to achieve net zero 
carbon footprint would have involved consultations with 
haulage contractors? 

o The Climate Change and Environment Manager 
responded that the current work had been around 
establishing the key sectors, which in this 
geographical area, had included transport. The 
officer stated that the approach had focussed on 
how companies had evolved to embrace new 
technology and how business could be supported in 
this regard. Council initiatives which needed to be 
considered included: 

▪ working with the County Council regarding 
transport planning:  

▪ working with industries and businesses in 
terms of innovation; and  

▪ that information and learning would be 
shared. 
 

The Climate Change and Environment Manager advised that the 
issues raised at the meeting would be taken on board, and that 
members could raise any further comments/issues with her 
directly. 
 
AGREED:  
 

Page 7



- 21 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

That the issues raised by the Policy Development Panel be noted 
prior to consideration of the Draft Climate Change Strategy at 
Cabinet in December 2021.  

   

26. FUEL CARD POLICY   

  

 With agreement of the Chairman, this item would be discussed at 
the next meeting of the Panel.  

 

   

27. CORPORATE ENFORCEMENT POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director - 
Regulatory to seek approval of a revised Corporate Enforcement 
Policy.  
 

The Head of Public Protection introduced the report which had 
included the following general overview: 

• the policy covered a broad range of powers which included 
enforcement and compliance; 

• it had applied to regulatory and enforcement activities 
carried out on behalf of the Council: such as in 
Environmental Health; Planning; and Building Control; 

• the policy had been reviewed every three years and the 
last major review had occurred in 2018; 

• the proposed changes listed in the report had been minor 
and the application of the policy had remained unchanged;  

• consultation had taken place with relevant council 
departments. Public consultation had not been required as 
the changes had been minor. 

 
The Head of Public Protection advised the Panel that 
recommendations 3 and 4 within the report had been included in 
error as these recommendations only applied to Cabinet (the 
report was due to be considered there on 14 December 2021) 
 
AGREED: 
 

1) That the revised Corporate Enforcement Policy be noted; 
and 

 
2) That the revised Corporate Enforcement Policy be 

recommended to go forward to Cabinet.  

 

   

28. INDUSTRIAL UNITS LETTING POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the verbal update of the Industrial 
Units Letting Policy which was provided by the Strategic and 
Operational Property Manager. 

 

Page 8



- 22 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 
 

The Strategic and Operational Property Manager reminded the 
Panel that the following items had previously been brought to the 
Panel with regular updates:  

• the rationale behind the need for a new Industrial Units 
Letting Policy; 

• initiatives taken to improve unit condition and planned 
maintenance; and 

• how officers were engaging with tenants given the ongoing 
pandemic.  

 
An update on new lettings was presented: 

• the Lettings Policy had been adopted in September 2020; 

• the drive to update the whole estate had been positive; 

• 34% of the estate had completed new leases; 

• 54% had engaged proactively with the council and had 
been in varying stages of pre-completion; 

• an element of uncertainty which had resulted from the 
pandemic had applied to around 6% of the estate. A 
proportion could become vacant by March 2022, which 
would enable lettings to new tenants; and 

• that new business had been on an upward trend and the 
council had received 42 new enquiries in recent months. 
The situation had been considered healthy.  

 
The Panel considered the verbal update and made the following 
comments: 
 

• The Chairman asked what the timeframes for the policy 
were; 

o The Strategic and Operational Property Manager 
stated that extensive dialogue continued with 
tenants to enable new leases to be granted that 
suited both the Council and its tenants needs, for 
example, on lease term.  It was expected that all 
new leases in the new modern lease form would be 
in place by March 2020; 

o The Assistant Director – Strategic Projects stated 
that: 

▪ the new Policy, and with it the new precedent 
lease, would mean that the basis of how 
estates were managed would reflect a 
modern commercial approach;  

▪ so far, new leases had been granted for 
either a 3 or 6 year term; and  

▪ that break clauses had been included which 
had allowed tenants an element of flexibility. 

 

Page 9



- 23 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

AGREED: 
 
That the verbal update be noted.  

   

29. ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the verbal update of the Asset 
Management Strategy Policy which was given by the Assistant 
Director – Strategic Projects. 
 
The Assistant Director – Strategic Projects stated that: 

• An update of the policy had been included in the Policy 
Register; 

• The existing document now needed to be updated to 
reflect the priorities of the new S&ELCP partnership and 
work towards this was underway. This would include: 

o How Council assets would be used and where 
appropriate, let including resourcing of key work 
streams; 

o New management responsibilities in place to reflect 
the new roles and responsibilities through the 
S&ELCP; 

o common approaches to asset management across 
the three councils; 

 
An update on the document had been reported to the Governance 
and Audit Committee, and approval of a draft was to be sought by 
the end of the financial year. The Panel would be updated with 
progress through the Policy Register; and officers would provide 
the Panel with an update at its March meeting. 
 
AGREED: 
 

1) That the verbal report be noted; and 
 

2) That an update on the Asset Management Strategy Policy 
be provided to the Panel meeting on 23 March 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RH, AT, 
MW  

   

30. UNTIDY SITES POLICY DOCUMENT HANDBOOK   

  

 Consideration was given to the verbal update on the Untidy Sites 
Policy Document Handbook which was given by the Assistant 
Director – Strategic Projects. 
 

The Assistant Director – Strategic Projects introduced the update 
and thanked Councillor Booth and Councillor Redgate for their 
contribution to the document. The update included the following 
key points:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



- 24 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

• that the Untidy Sites Policy Document Handbook had been 
a new policy. It was still in draft and was 90% completed; 

• a policy of this nature had not existed within Boston or East 
Lindsey.  

• Research had found policy documents where enforcement 
was the main emphasis, but none existed which had 
specified interventions which this policy had aimed to 
address for English Council.  Officers would continue to 
look for other examples; 

• sites had come forward for development in Donington and 
Holbeach but others had been problematic due to 
ownership and viability issues;  

• the intention was to bring the draft policy to the Policy 
Development Panel on 18 January 2021, to include: 

o an overview of why the policy was needed; 
o the policy aims, which included the need for a single 

process reference document; 
o that a single point of contact was needed; 

communications would be captured through SHDC 
website electronic forms and a dedicated email 
address; 

o the process for how complaints would be managed 
which would be monitored by a new Performance 
Indicator; 

o input received from Ward members and Executive 
Members; 

o links to relevant legislation; 
o sample site information; 
o a flow chart for information capture which included 

best practice cases; 
o the process setting out how landowners would be 

informed of the policy and opportunities that may 
exist to work collaboratively with the Council; and 

o how site review work might be funded; 
 
The Assistant Director – Strategic Projects concluded that the 
document would be the first of its kind which included 
implementation, intervention and enforcement in one policy. 
 
Members considered the update and made the following 
comments: 

• Members welcomed the policy and thanked officers and 
councillors who had worked on it. 

• Members who had worked on the policy thanked the 
Assistant Director – Strategic Projects and stated that the 
policy had been ambitious and demonstrated how seriously 
the Council was wishing to deal with the issue. 
Opportunities existed for the policy to be implemented 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



- 25 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

across the partnership and to become a strategy across 
South Lincolnshire.  

• Members stated that developers for Holbeach and 
Donington sites had already come forward and there had 
been developer interest for sites at Long Sutton, all of 
which had been positive. 

• Members stated that untidy sites had been an issue for 
residents which had included The Bull and Monkie site, the 
site of the old Post Office Sorting Office, and the Johnson 
Hospital site. Would the policy address these long-standing 
problems?  

o The Assistant Director – Strategic Projects 
responded that the policy had not been in place to 
solve specific issues but that it had set out a 
process to be followed which would assist 
engagement between officers and landowners. The 
process would encourage positive engagement 
where opportunities existed, and make it clear to 
landowners that there were a range of enforcement 
options open to the Council if they did not engage, 
and continued to own sites that were causing 
nuisance and attracting anti-social behaviour. 

• Members questioned whether adequate resources would 
be in place to handle the potential increase in enquiries 
when the policy was eventually implemented.  

o It was not anticipated that this would be highly 
resource-intensive, but a threshold would exist in 
the process to prioritise cases and establish the 
resource needs/person dealing with matters.  

 
AGREED: 
 

1) That the verbal update be noted; and 
 

2) That the Untidy Sites Policy Document Handbook be 
planned to be presented to the Panel at its next meeting on 
18 January 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RH, AT, 
MW  

   

31. POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME   

  

 The Panel considered a report by the Executive Manager for 
Governance, which set out the work programme of the Panel.  
The work programme consisted of two sections, the first setting 
out the dates of future panel meetings along with proposed items 
for consideration, and the second setting out Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel. 
 
Regarding Appendix A, the Chairman noted that: 

 

Page 12



- 26 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 16 
November 2021 

 

 

• The Untidy Sites and Safeguarding policies be added to 
the January Work Programme; 

• the Unreasonable Behaviour and Vexatious Policy was due 
for review but policies in general were being reviewed to 
establish whether they applied across the partnership or 
with individual authorities. The Senior Change and 
Performance Business Partner would ensure that the 
Policy Register was updated when the position was 
clarified; and 

• in light of no further progress with regard to the proposed 
Planning Reform, the Planning Design Task Group Final 
Report and the update on Planning Reform would be 
moved to a future meeting. 

 
Regarding Appendix B, the Chairman noted that: 

• In order to proceed with the Planning Design Task Group 
and the Community Infrastructure Levy Task Group, further 
information on the Government White Paper on Planning 
Reform was required. A decision would need to be made at 
a future meeting as to whether these items should remain 
on the Work Programme; and 

• the South Holland Centre Task Group had commenced its 
work in September 2021, and had been productive. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Work Programme be noted.  

   

32. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

 
(The meeting ended at 7.37 pm) 
 
(End of minutes)  
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



- 27 - 
 

Informal notes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held virtually, 
on Tuesday, 14 December 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
A R Woolf (Chairman) 
G P Scalese (Vice-Chairman) 

 
J Avery 
A C Beal 
F Biggadike 
H J W Bingham 
 

R A Gibson 
M Hasan 
J D McLean 
P A Redgate 
 

G T D Rudkin 
G P Scalese (Vice-
Chairman) 
S C Walsh 
 

  
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth, 
J L Reynolds and S-A Slade.     
 
In Attendance:  The Interim Deputy Chief Executive - Communities, the Democratic 
Services Manager, the Democratic Services Team Leader and the Democratic 
Services Officer. 
 
 
 Action By 

33. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were none.   

   

34. LEGAL STREET ART WALL   

  

 The following petition was considered at the meeting of the 
District Council on 24 November 2021: 
 

Title: Legal Street Art Wall 
 
Statement: We the undersigned petition the Council to help us 
organise/find a designated area/wall/walls to become a legal spot 
in 
Spalding for street artists/artists to be able to paint there. 
 
Justification: Many from around the area have commented on 
social 
media, after seeing some local work and talent, that it would be a 
nice 
attraction for the town to have a legal street art wall – somewhere 
people 
can go to paint. Peterborough has one and it has been a huge 
attraction for the city, with people coming from all over the country 
to 
visit the artwork. Having something like this in Spalding will attract 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2.b)



- 28 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 14 
December 2021 

 

 

many 
big named street artists to come and paint here, and also be an 
attraction for the town , bringing more business/customers to the 
rest of 
the town whilst they visit. Schools can also use an area/wall to do 
art 
projects, and the local community could put on workshops, to 
teach the 
younger generation about the street art culture, to respect the 
artwork 
and to teach them how to do it. 
 
The Council agreed the following:  
 
That a special meeting of the Policy Development Panel be 
organised to consider membership of a sub-committee in order to 
look at the potential creation of a street art wall, and issues to be 
addressed. Potential issues raised for consideration included: 
 

• governance around the operation of the street art wall;  

• how the space could be managed, to include: who could 
contribute to the artwork on the wall; content of the artwork; 
who would be responsible for maintaining the wall should it 
be defaced, and to keep it in a good state; and  

• potential locations.  
 
The Policy Development Panel was requested to agree the way 
forward. 
 
The Chairman introduced the item and stated that the aim of the 
meeting was to set up a Task Group with up to five members, and 
to provide a steer to the Task Group. 
 
The Interim Deputy Chief Executive (Communities) was in 
attendance, and raised the following points: 
 

• It was important to understand the difference between 
street art and graffiti – the basic difference was whether or 
not permission had been granted by the owner of a 
building/wall etc; 

• The Council currently did not have a street art policy in 
place and it was suggested that the Task Group should 
consider developing such a policy which would cover street 
art; 

• There were three priorities within the Council’s Corporate 
Plan which would link to a well-defined street art policy – 1) 
Enhancement of wellbeing for the residents of South 
Holland; 2) Establishment of pride in South Holland where 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



- 29 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 14 
December 2021 

 

 

public spaces were cleaner, greener and safer; and 3) 
Wanting to visit/live/work in the area while supporting our 
villages in the district and meeting the needs of the 
communities; 

• There were a number of street art policies that existed in 
the UK and internationally, and these created a vibrant 
street art culture   By developing its own policy, South 
Holland could set the framework for how it wished to 
develop its own street art and what it wished to discourage.  
It could also consider the type of content to be encouraged 
and avoid content that could cause offence; 

• The Task Group could consider the creation of an 
evaluation panel where street art could come forward for 
approval. 

• It would be important to ensure a mechanism where the 
creator of the street art was responsible for its 
maintenance and upkeep; 

• The Task Group should identify an area where the street 
art could be undertaken; 

• If a policy could be developed in South Holland, this could 
potentially be rolled out across the other authorities within 
the S&ELCP partnership. 

 
Panel members also raised the following points: 
 

• The initial location would be in Spalding but if successful, 
could be rolled out to other towns and villages in the district 
if required; 

• It was important for the Task Group to assist in developing 
a strong policy, which ensured that any controversial 
content was not included on street art walls. 

• The Chairman confirmed that the draft policy would be 
presented to the Policy Development Panel before 
progressing, and that members would therefore have an 
opportunity to consider it before its adoption. 

 
The Interim Deputy Chief Executive (Communities) stated that in 
order to assist the Task Group in its work, officers could start to 
formulate a draft policy for consideration by the Task Group as 
soon as it met.  Members felt that providing a skeleton policy 
would be useful, and members could then add to this.  It was also 
requested that the Task Group be provided with links to other 
policies/examples of street art.   

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That a Street Art Wall Task Group be set up to consider 

addressing the issues raised by members in the debate, and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FW  

Page 17



- 30 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 14 
December 2021 

 

 

the suggestions made by the Interim Deputy Chief Executive 
(Communities), and that this result in the creation of a draft 
street art policy; 

 
b) That a skeleton policy be drafted by officers for the Task 

Group to start populating at its first meeting, and that Task 
Group members also be provided with links to other 
policies/examples of street art; 

 
c) That membership of the Task Group comprise of Councillor P 

Redgate, Councillor J McLean, Councillor H Bingham, 
Councillor R Gibson and Councillor G Rudkin; and 

 
d) That officers identify a lead officer and viable dates so that work on 

the Task Group could commence at the earliest opportunity in the 
new year.  

   

 
(The meeting ended at 6.51 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 10 January 2022 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for 
Environmental 
Services 
(Councillor 
Roger Gambba-
Jones) 
 
Procurement of 
Fuel Supplier 
 

To provide details of the 
preferred supplier for the 
fuel required for South 
Holland District Council 
fleet vehicles 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services, or 
Leader  
 
Not before 10th Jan 2022 

Charlotte Paine, 
Head of 
Environmental 
and Operational 
Services 
cpaine@sholland
.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Dividend or 
charitable 
donation 
payment by 
Welland Homes 
 

To endorse the decision 
of Welland Homes 
Board in accordance 
with the Welland Homes 
Dividend and Charitable 
Donations policy 
 

Consultation with Welland 
Homes Board, Leader of 
the Council and S151 
Officer 
 
To seek views on the 
appropriate profit 
distribution via email and 
meetings. 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Not before 20th Jan 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 20

mailto:cpaine@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:cpaine@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
SHDC Land 
Sites Project 
 

To appoint a consultant 
to provide Architectural 
Services to progress a 
number of land assets 
owned by SHDC, to 
explore the potential to 
provide housing for the 
district. 

 

Housing Delivery Steering 
Group (Cllrs Coupland, 
Grocock, Lawton) 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director - 
Strategic Growth and 
Development, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery,  
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
SHDC Land 
Sites Project 
 

To appoint a consultant 
to provide Employer's 
Agent Services to 
progress a number of 
land assets owned by 
SHDC to explore the 
potential to provide 
housing for the district. 

 

Housing Delivery Steering 
Group (Cllrs Coupland, 
Grocock, Lawton) 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director - 
Strategic Growth and 
Development, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery,  
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 21

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (A) 
 

Acquisition of a second 
hand property. 
 

Ward Members and 
Housing Delivery Steering 
Group (Cllrs Coupland, 
Grocock, Lawton) 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (E) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

Ward Members and 
Housing Delivery Steering 
Group (Cllrs Coupland, 
Grocock, Lawton) 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 22

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
5 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (F) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

Ward Members and 
Housing Delivery Steering 
Group (Cllrs Coupland, 
Grocock, Lawton) 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Jan 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
Contract 
amendment 
 

SHDC is in contract with 
Loosegate 
Developments for the 
delivery of 19 affordable 
homes at Wignals Gate, 
Holbeach. This decision 
relates to an amendment 
to the existing 
agreement to enable 
seven units in phase 2 of 
the contract to be 
delivered. 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Not before 7th Feb 2022 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery,  
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 23

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
6 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
Fire door and 
Compliance 
contract 
 

Fire door replacement 
and associated fire 
compliance works to 
sheltered schemes 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation  
 
Before 28 Feb 2022 

Darren Tyrie, 
Projects 
Surveyor 
dtyrie@sholland.
gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
Lincolnshire 
Discretionary 
Housing 
Assistance 
Policy 
 

To set out the 
Lincolnshire 
Discretionary Housing 
Assistance Policy. 
 

Lincolnshire Housing, 
Health and Care Delivery 
Group, Portfolio Holder 
and Policy Development 
Panel 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Cabinet 26 Apr 2022, or 
Leader 

Stuart Horton, 
Service Manager 
– Affordable and 
Accessible 
Homes, 
Stuart.Horton@b
oston.gov.uk  

 
 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

P
age 24

mailto:Stuart.Horton@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Stuart.Horton@boston.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
7 

 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader of the Cabinet) 
Councillor J Astill (Portfolio Holder 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor E Sneath (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 

 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 

Telephone: 01775 764451 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 
 

P
age 25

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Council Partnership 
Policy

Theme Policy Title Policy Type

Can Policy be 
influenced 

(flexible 
scope)

Approved Date
Policy Review 

Cycle 
Policy Review 

Date
Policy Status Latest Update Policy Owner Final Approval Panel

SHDC Yes Assets
Asset Management 

Policy
Constitutional Yes 18-Jun-14 5 years 18-Jun-19

Due for 
review

Policy owner provided a verbal update to PDP in November 21. A revised 
date for commencing the drafting of the full Asset Management Strategy 
(AMS) was delayed on the basis that COVID has impacted many of our 
assets. PDP have been notified data collection has commenced, in 
particular around planned maintenance and the proposed structure of 
the document developed. However, with lockdown and various 
regulations continuing through the Summer, some operational assets 
remained closed, in the case of South Holland Centre until late July and 
Ayscoughee Museum September. Given this, the emergence of the Delta 
and Omicron variants meaning assets are being used in a different way 
and the planned refresh of the Corporate Plan the time has not been 
right to progress a meaningful AMS as part of this year’s budget setting 
process. Further from 1st October 21 following the setting up of the 
S&ELCP there have been changes in management arrangements for 
assets and capital projects pertaining too. These changes will be 
reflected in the refresh of the AMS. PDP were advised in November that 
the option to prepare a single AMS covering the 3 Council’s was under 
consideration. These discussions will be advanced during Q1 22.

Richard 
Hodgson/Andy 

Fisher

SHDC Yes ICT
ICT Incident 

Management
Non-Statutory Yes 21-Jan-20 Annual 19-Feb-21 In Review

The Portfolio holder for ICT is looking to reinstate the ICT Members 
Working Group to work with PSPS on amendments to specific policies 
that impact on usage of Members and Officers. It has been agreed that 
the policies will be deferred until the March PDP to allow time for 
portfolio holder and member input.

Jackie Wright (PSPS)
Policy Development 

Panel

SHDC Yes ICT
Employee Access 

Policy
Non-statutory Yes 21-Jan-20 Annual 19-Feb-21 In review

The Portfolio holder for ICT is looking to reinstate the ICT Members 
Working Group to work with PSPS on amendments to specific policies 
that impact on usage of Members and Officers. It has been agreed that 
the policies will be deferred until the March PDP to allow time for 
portfolio holder and member input.

Jackie Wright (PSPS)
Policy Development 

Panel

SHDC Yes FOI
Freedom of 

Information Policy
Statutory No 26-Jun-18 3 years 26-Jun-21

Due for 
review

South Holland District Council will be taking part in the opportunity to 
review a suite of Legislative and Statutory Policies such as the FOI Policy 
to ascertain the advantage of having aligned policies across all 3 councils 
in the S&ELCP Partnership. That review is likely to be completed during 
Q4 of 2021/22 financial year.

Mark Stinson

SHDC Yes Debt
Corporate Debt 

Policy - Accounting 
Services

Non Statutory Yes 25-Jul-17 3 years 25-Jul-21 In review
This is in review and expected to be approved by April 2022, with 
implementation for any revised policy from April 2022.  The current 
policy remains valid.

Samantha 
Knowles/Sharon 

Hammond
TBC

SHDC Yes Safeguarding Safeguarding Policy Statutory No 20-Nov-18 3 years 01-Nov-21 In Review
Will be reviewed within the wider strategic partnership and will be 
brought forward Feb/March

Emily Holmes

SHDC Policy Register

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8.



SHDC Yes Complaints
Unreasonable 
Behaviour and 

vexatious requests
Non Statutory Yes 21-Nov-17 3 years 21-Nov-21 In Review

South Holland District Council will be taking part in the opportunity to 
review a suite of Legislative and Statutory Policies such as the Vexatious 
Policy to ascertain the advantage of having aligned policies across all 3 
councils in the S&ELCP Partnership. That review is likely to be completed 
during Q4 of 2021/22 financial year.

Mark Stinson

SHDC Yes Information 
Management

Records 
Management Policy

Non Statutory Yes  3 years 01-Jan-22 In Review Currently under review, looking to bring forward in Feb/March Kirsty Porter

SHDC Yes HR
HR Policy 
Handbook

Non Statutory Yes 18-Jan-21 3 years 18-Jan-22 Approved
The policy handbook will be reviewed in early 2022 with an update to be 
provided in March 2022

Nikki Harding

SHDC No Housing Strategy
Strategic Tenancy 

Policy
Statutory Yes 01-Feb-19 3 years 01-Feb-22 Approved

This policy was taken to PDP previously and updated to reflect the fact 
that SHDC offers introductory to secure tenancies. This should also cover 
non-secure tenancies. As such the policy owner believes the policy exists 
to allow the council to grant the appropriate tenure types.
There have been no changes to the tenancies we offer. Therefore It is 
suggested we re-date the review date to reflect this

Jason King

SHDC Yes ASB
Anti-Social 

Behaviour Policy
Statutory Yes 01-May-19 3 years 01-Mar-22 Approved

The ASB Policy has been approved, as it is currently that of the 
Lincolnshire County Council one. The County one is currently out for 
consultation as it has been updated in line with new recommendations 
from the victims commissioner, any updated on this will be fed through 
to PDP

Dee Bedford

SHDC No Finance Capital Strategy Constitutional Yes 03-Mar-21 1 year 03-Mar-22 Approved
Approved by full council in March 2021 (Annual review as part of budget 
setting Process)

Samantha Knowles Full Council

SHDC Finance
Fees and Charges 

Policy 
Constitutional Yes 03-Mar-21 1 year 03-Mar-22 Approved

Approved by full council in Feb 2021 (Annual review as part of budget 
setting Process)

Samantha Knowles Full Council

SHDC Finance
Medium Term 

Financial Strategy
Constitutional No 03-Mar-21 1 year 03-Mar-22 Approved

Approved by full council in Feb 2021 (Annual review as part of budget 
setting Process)

Samantha Knowles Full Council

SHDC Finance

Treasury 
Management 

Strategy (Includes 
Statement and 

Clauses)

Constitutional No 03-Mar-21 1 year 03-Mar-22 Approved
Approved by full council in Feb 2020 (Annual review as part of budget 
setting Process)

Samantha Knowles Full Council

SHDC Finance
Minimum Revenue 

Provision Policy 
Statement

Constitutional No 03-Mar-21 1 year 03-Mar-22 Approved
Approved by full council in Feb 2020 (Annual review as part of budget 
setting Process)

Samantha Knowles Full Council

SHDC Housing Strategy
Affordable Housing 

Policy
Non Statutory Yes 01-Jan-09 3 years 01-Apr-22 Approved

This Policy has approved within the Local Plan, It has been agreed there 
doesn't need to be a separate housing strategy, this has now been 
formally adopted in line with the Local Plan

Matthew Hogan

P
age 28



SHDC Housing Strategy
Housing Allocations 
and Letting Policy

Statutory Yes 27-Apr-21 1 years 27-Apr-22 Approved This policy has been approved by PDP and Cabinet Vikki Cherry Cabinet

SHDC No Licensing
Taxi Licensing 

Policy
Non Statutory Yes 01-Jun-19 3 years 01-Jun-22 Approved Donna Hall

SHDC Yes Industrial Units
Industrial Units 
Letting Policy

Non Statutory No 27-Oct-20 1 Year 01-Sep-22 Approved

Policy owner provided a verbal update to PDP in November together 
with an update on numbers of units now let on terms consistent with the 
updated policy and the timetable for finalising the outstanding unit 
leases. The policy has only been in force for 14 months and renewals of 
leases have been managed sensitively given the potential impact on 
businesses as a result of the Covid pandemic.

Andy Fisher

SHDC Licensing
Sexual 

Establishments 
Policy Statement

Non Statutory Yes 06-Sep-17 5 years 06-Sep-22 Approved Donna Hall

SHDC Museum
AHM Collections 

Development 
Policy

Non Statutory No 01-Nov-20 2 years 01-Nov-22 Approved Julia Knight

SHDC Museum
AHM Collections 

Care and 
Conservation Policy

Non Statutory No 01-Nov-20 2 years 01-Nov-22 Approved Julia Knight

SHDC Yes Environmental
Climate Change 

Strategy 
Non-Statutory Yes 14-Dec-21 1 Year 14-Dec-22 Approved Sarah Baker Cabinet

SHDC Housing Strategy
Housing Tenancy 

Management Policy
Statutory Yes 15-Dec-20 2 Year 15-Dec-22 Approved Vikki Cherry

SHDC No Corporate Strategy Corporate Plan Constitutional Yes 08-Mar-19 1 year 01-Mar-23 Approved
This is a 4 year corporate plan, historically yearly reviews have taken 
place, but this is not required.

James Gilbert

SHDC Yes H&S
Health & Safety 

Policy
Statutory No 15-Dec-20 3 years 15-Dec-23 Approved

This has been agreed by PSPS to be a 3 yearly policy review cycle in line 
with other organisations.

Emily Ferrier; Nick 
Kendrick

SHDC Fraud
Counter Fraud and 
Corruption Policy

Non Statutory Yes 11-Mar-21 3 years 01-Mar-24 Approved Faye Haywood
Governance and 

Audit

SHDC Yes Whistleblowing
Whistleblowing 

Policy - Confidential 
Reporting Code

Statutory Yes 11-Mar-21 3 years 01-Mar-24 Approved Faye Haywood
Governance and 

Audit

SHDC Housing Strategy
Empty Homes 

Strategy
Statutory Yes 27-Oct-20 1 year 01-Mar-24 Approved Jason King Cabinet

SHDC Housing Strategy
Housing Assistance 

Policy
Statutory Yes 27-Oct-20 1 year 01-Mar-24 Approved Jason King Cabinet

P
age 29



SHDC Yes Enforcement
Corporate 

Enforcement Policy
Non Statutory Yes 14-Dec-21 3 years 29-May-24 Approved Donna Hall

SHDC Yes DP
Data Protection 

Policy
Statutory No 10-Dec-21 3 years 29-May-24 Approved Kirsty Porter

SHDC Street naming
Street Naming and 
Numbering Policy

Statutory Yes 01-Nov-21 3 years 01-Nov-24 Approved Clinton Bell

SHDC No Licensing
Gambling Policy - 

Statement of 
Principles

Constitutional Yes 14-Dec-21 3 years 28-Nov-24 Approved Donna Hall

SHDC No Licensing
Statement of 

Licensing Policy
Constitutional Yes 07-Jan-21 5 years 07-Jan-26 Approved

The statement of licensing policy has been revised and republished. Not 
due now until Jan 2026

Donna Hall

P
age 30



BBC ELDC SHDC BBC ELDC SHDC

Asset Management Policy A Fisher Feb-21 Jan-16 Jun-14 Feb-22 Jan-26 Jun-19

Employee Access Policy PSPS ICT May-21 May-21 Jan-20 May-23 May-23 Feb-21 Yes

ICT Incident Management 
Policy

PSPS ICT May-21 May-21 Jan-20 May-23 May-23 Feb-21 Yes

Freedom of Information 
Policy

M Stinson - Jun-19 Jun-18 - Due for review Jun-21 Yes

Corporate Debt Policy - 
Accounting Services

S Knowles - - Jul-17 - - Jul-21 Yes

Unreasonable Behaviour 
and vexatious requests

M Stinson Sep-17 - Nov-17 Due for review - Nov-21 Yes

Safeguarding Policy E Spicer Mar-21 Mar-21 Nov-18 Mar-23 Mar-23 Nov-21 Yes
HR Policy Handbook PSPS HR Under review Under review Jan-21 - - Jan-22 Yes
Information / Records 
Management Policy

M Stinson May-17 - Jan-19 May-20 - Jan-22 Yes

Strategic Tenancy Policy E Spicer Jan-13 Jan-13 Feb-19 Jan-18 Jan-18 Feb-22

Fees and Charges Policy S Knowles Mar-21 Mar-21 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-22 Mar-22

Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement

S Knowles Mar-21 Mar-21 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-22 Mar-22

Affordable Housing Policy E Spicer - - Jan-19 - - Apr-22

Housing Allocations Policy E Spicer May-21 Jun-21 Apr-21 May-23 Jun-23 Apr-22

Anti-Social Behaviour Policy E Spicer May-19 May-19 May-19 May-22 May-22 May-22 Yes

Taxi Licensing Policy C Allen - Apr-21 Jun-19 Under review - Jun-22
Sexual Establishments 
Policy Statement

C Allen Nov-11 Apr-19 Sep-17 - Apr-25 Sep-22

Industrial Units Letting 
Policy

A Fisher - - Oct-20 - - Oct-22

AHM Collections Care and 
Conservation Policy

P Perry Oct-19 - Nov-20 Oct-24 - Nov-22

Housing Tenancy 
Management Policy

E Spicer - - Dec-20 - - Dec-22

Health & Safety Policy C Allen Sep-21 - Dec-20 Sep-24 - Dec-23

Whistleblowing Policy PSPS HR Nov-17 Jan-16 Mar-21 Due for review Due for review Mar-24 Yes

Counter Fraud and 
Corruption Policy

S Knowles May-18 - Mar-21 Due for review - Mar-24

Empty Homes Strategy E Spicer - Jan-14 Oct-20 - Jan-18 Mar-24
Housing Assistance / 
Homelessness Strategy

E Spicer Oct-19 Jan-17 Oct-20 Oct-21 Jan-21 Mar-24

Data Protection Policy M Stinson May-18 Jul-19 Dec-21 Due for review Jun-20 May-24 Yes

Corporate Enforcement 
Policy

M Gildersleeves Jan-15 Feb-14 Dec-21 Due for review Feb-17 May-24

Policy Approved Policy Review
Policy name Lead

SELCP Policy 
Opportunity 

Page 31



Gambling Policy - 
Statement of Principles

C Allen Nov-18 Oct-21 Dec-21
Out for 

consultation
Oct-24 Nov-24

Street Naming and 
Numbering Policy

A Fisher - - Nov-21 - - Nov-24

Statement of Licensing 
Policy

C Allen Nov-20 Sep-20 Jan-21 Nov-25 Sep-25 Jan-26

Social media acceptable use 
policy

J Gilbert Oct-21 Sep-21 - - - - Yes

Customer feedback policy M Stinson Sep-17 Apr-14 - Due for review Due for review - Yes

Waste Enforcement Policy V Burgess Jan-21 - - - - -

Local Plan M Gildersleeves Mar-19 Jul-18 - Mar-24 Jul-31 -
RIPA C Allen Sep-21 Sep-21 - Sep-24 Sep-24 -
CCTV policy E Spicer Dec-20 - - Dec-21 - -
Equality Objectives & Equal 
Ops Policy

E Spicer Sep-17 - - Sep-19 - -

Housing Strategy E Spicer Jan-12 Jan-13 - Jan-17 Jan-18 -
Private Sector Housing 
Policy

E Spicer Jun-18 - - - - -

Constitution M Stinson May-19 Jul-21 Jan-18 Under review Under review Under review Yes

Page 32



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Assistant Director - Neighbourhoods  

 

To: Policy Development Panel Tuesday, 18 January 2022; Cabinet Tuesday 15 

February 2022 

 

(Author: Charlotte Paine Head of Environmental and Operational Services) 

 

Subject Fuel Card Policy 

 

Purpose: To note the new fuel card policy  

 

 
Recommendations: 
 
1) To consider the Fuel Card policy prior to submission and proposed adoption by Cabinet. 

 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 South Holland District Council delivers a range of services that require an operational fleet 

to ensure the continuation of our great service to residents. Some of these services include 

waste collections, parks and grounds, streets, housing repairs and the dog warden. 

 

1.2 Maintaining an operational fleet means that we must provide a cost effective and efficient 

way of fuelling our vehicles. There are a few ways that this can be achieved, an onsite fuel 

tank or providing fuel cards for refuelling on the go. For SHDC, as we do not have sufficient 

space for a fuel tank at our depot, fuel cards have been the preferred method of fuel 

purchasing for a number of years. 

 

1.3 When using fuel cards, ensuring that robust procurement and monitoring is in place is vital 

to ensure that the cards remain cost efficient and effective for the Council. Therefore, 

having a robust policy, supported by a procedure and training plan, is key to ensuring these 

cards are being used accurately and effectively.  

 

2.0 OPTIONS 

 

2.1 Option One – Adopt the Fuel Card Policy. The purpose of the fuel card policy is to 

provide rules, guidance and procedures for the appropriate use and monitoring of fuel 

cards. Adopting the policy will ensure staff are aware of the rules and their responsibilities. 

This is the recommended option of this report. 

 

2.2 Option Two – Do nothing. By not adopting the policy, SHDC does not support staff and 

provide them a policy which outlines their responsibilities. This lack of clarity risks 

misunderstanding and misuse. 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9.



3.1 Purchasing fuel is essential for delivery of our frontline services. Ensuring that our fuel is 

purchased in a convenient and financially safe way is crucial to keeping those services 

running and that council spend is transparent and appropriate. 

 

3.2 The policy clearly details the ways that a policy can mitigate potential risks and possible 

fraud opportunities. 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 The policy sets out how fuel cards should be used and for which products. The benefits of a 

document that sets out clearly the roles and responsibilities for staff, is in the clarity of the 

Councils expectations of those using and monitoring the fuel cards. 

 

4.2 The policy is detailed in how it can safeguard the council in areas of potential risk and 

supports the users and the council by mitigating these risks. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Contracts 

5.1.1 Our fuel card supplier is procured with our procurement team and a review of this is 

underway to ensure our current supplier continues to provide best value and the right 

services to us, including monitoring information to support our policy.  

 

5.2 Financial 

5.2.1 There are no additional financial impacts to this policy, the supplier is being reviewed to 

ensure that they provide SHDC with the best value for fuel purchasing.  

 

5.3 Reputation 

5.3.1 By having a clear policy, SHDC can support its positive reputation of clear financial 

governance and supporting its staff.   

 

5.4 Risk Management 

5.4.1 The policy details risk management of the cards from issuing, to use, monitoring, storage 

and return of the cards. 

 

5.4.2 The policy also supports SHDC as part of its audit framework and requirements for 

accurate financial monitoring and use.  

 

5.5 Staffing 

5.5.1 There are no additional staffing requirements as a part of this policy. The staff that are 

impacted by this policy will also receive a procedure which further details the requirements 

of users as well as ongoing training. 

 

Page 34



5.6 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales 

5.6.1 It is acknowledged that the introduction of a policy and procedure requires additional 

training to ensure full compliance and understanding of the reasons and benefits of the new 

procedures. Therefore, a training package is being designed to coincide with adoption and 

implementation of the policy.  

 

5.6.2 In addition to this, staff have been consulted along the way whilst drafting the policy and 

procedure, which has ensured they have helped to design a policy that aligns with staff and 

SHDC needs and requirements. There has also been, and will continue to be, ongoing 

communication of the policy, and the best way to implement it, through the environmental 

services staff engagement events. 

 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 All 

 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

 

7.1 SHDC – South Holland District Council  

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Charlotte Paine Head of Environmental and Operational Services 

Telephone Number  

Email: cpaine@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

 

Exempt Decision: N  

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Fuel Card Policy 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

APPROVED BY: South Holland District Council 
 

APPROVAL DATE: XXXXXX REVIEW DATE: XXXXXXX 
 

DOCUMENT NUMBER: VERSION:  
 

THIS POLICY APPLIES TO: South Holland District Council Employees, Management, 
Staff, Students, Volunteers, other Stakeholders  

   South Holland District Council 

Fuel Card Policy 

Page 37



  FUEL CARD POLICY 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Fuel Card Policy  
 

Purpose: 
Fuel cards offer a convenient way for SHDC staff to re-fuel vehicles quickly and efficiently 
in the course of SHDC business, while maintaining maximum safeguards.  
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide rules and guidance for the issuing, appropriate 
use and ongoing monitoring of fuel cards. The Fuel Cards Procedure accompanies this 
policy which sets out further detail on the use and monitoring of fuel card usage and 
supports staff with the practical implications of this policy. 
 
Definitions: 

• The “Fuel Card Supplier” (hereinafter referred to as “Supplier”) is SHDC’s 
preferred fuel card supplier, chosen through a procurement process to ensure the 
best use of public funds when purchasing fuel 

• The “Fuel Card Administrator” (hereinafter referred to as “Administrator”) is 
responsible for administering the fleet card purchases and updating the monitoring 
sheet. 

• The “Fuel Card Supervisor” (hereinafter referred to as “Supervisor”) is responsible 
for issuing of cards, safe keeping of cards returned with keys or via the signing 
in/out process. 

• The “Fuel Card Coordinator” (hereinafter referred to as “Coordinator”) is a head of 
department or service responsible for ensuring that SHDC vehicles and cards are 
used for official SHDC business only. 

• The “Fuel Card User” (hereinafter referred to as “User”) is any SHDC employee 
authorised to use an SHDC issued fuel card. A User is responsible for ensuring 
that their issued SHDC vehicle and fuel card is used for official SHDC business 
only. 

• The “Fuel Cards” (hereinafter referred to as “Cards”) are a method of authorised 
Users obtaining eligible items/fuels at authorised fuel stations. 

 
Full details of the responsibilities of the above are detailed in the Fuel Policy Procedure. 
 
Policy 
Cards are provided to SHDC by the Supplier and issued to Users by the Supervisor. The 
User must obtain a receipt for every purchase, including the odometer reading (where 
applicable) and sign and print name on the receipt. Receipts must be provided to the 
Supervisor at the earliest convenience, or within 7 days of purchase at the latest. The 
administrator is responsible for monitoring the incoming receipts against the Suppliers 
ledger. 
 
Cards may only be used for the purpose intended, the purchase of authorised fuel or 
lubrications for the relevant SHDC vehicle or equipment. It is expressly forbidden to use 
the Card to purchase fuel or lubricant for any privately owned vehicle or equipment, other 
than the vehicle or equipment the card is provided. Any employee found to be in breach of 
this requirement will be deemed to have committed an act of gross misconduct and will be 
subject to disciplinary action. SHDC reserve the right to deduct any expenses relating to 
recovery or making good. 

Page 38



  FUEL CARD POLICY 

Page 3 of 2 

 

 

 
These permissions will be made clear when the card is issued. All Users will have been 
issued this policy, the procedure and required to sign the Terms of Use to confirm they 
understand their responsibilities as a fuel card User. Further detail of this, including the 
issuing process, is detailed further in the Fuel Card Procedure.  
 
Cards will only be able to make the following authorised purchases, but not all cards will 
have all these permissions: 

• Purchase of diesel 

• Purchase of petrol 

• Purchase of lubricants 
 

The receipts, with odometer reading (where applicable), alongside the Supplier ledger, 
aid in monitoring the costs and efficiency of vehicle fleet operation. For reasons of 
accurate recording of costs, usage and overall control and management of the fleet and 
fuel consumption, additional information is required. This includes User initials and tool 
monitoring sheets for areas such as use of ground maintenance equipment. Further 
details of which can be found in the Fuel Policy Procedure. 
 
To assist with these different types of fuel purchasing requirements, there are two 
different types of cards: 
 

• Vehicle cards – these cards are provided for use on a specific vehicle, with the 
vehicle registration printed on the card. Only the vehicle specified on the card 
should be filled with fuel using this card. The card should be kept with the keys to 
the vehicle, and it is the responsibility of the User given the keys that day to ensure 
these are kept together and safe at all times, until they are returned to a 
supervisor.  

 

• Bearer cards – these cards are not specific to a vehicle and are used to ensure 
there is suitable capacity of cards available at all times. In most cases these cards 
will be used for filling up motorised tools or hire vehicles. These cards will be 
assigned to an individual, and that User will be responsible for the sole and proper 
use and safety of that card until it is signed back in, having been returned to the 
supervisor. The amount of bearer cards should be kept to a minimum. 

 
Risk Management and Fraud Control 
 

• Supervisors will issue cards to Users that are eligible for a card and ensure that all 
Users have signed the Terms of Use agreement. 

• Users are to ensure that the card is used for the purchase of fuel and lubricants 
relating to Council business only. 

• Users will be required to sign a Terms of Use agreement acknowledging their 
compliance with the fuel card policy and procedure, once adopted by SHDC, before 
using a card to purchase any fuel or lubricants. 

• Supervisors will be responsible for collecting cards at the end of each day, for those 
that are required to be returned. 

• The administrator will monitor the use of cards via the receipts and supplier ledger, 

Page 39



  FUEL CARD POLICY 

Page 4 of 2 

 

 

at least fortnightly and raise any concerns immediately to the Coordinator.  

• Annual reviews of the usage of the fuel card will be conducted by the Coordinator. 
A report will be submitted to the Senior Management Team, by exception, detailing 
any issues on the use of the fuel cards over the past 12 months. 

• Where a card is lost, stolen or damaged the User must notify the Supervisor 
immediately. Steps will then be taken, by the Supervisor, to rectify the situation. This 
may include cancelling the card and, if required, reissuing a new card. 

• Inappropriate use of cards will be referred to the Coordinator and, where necessary, 
the Senior Management Team. Appropriate measures will be taken to ensure 
adherence to the Policy and Procedure. These measures may include cancellation 
of the card, or any other measures deemed necessary by the Coordinator. This 
could include disciplinary action. 

• It is the responsibility of the User to return the fuel card to the Supervisor on 
resignation from SHDC. The Coordinator will follow up on any cards that are not 
returned. The cards will be cancelled where this occurs. 

• Other methods of payment, such as P-Card, are only to be used in exceptional 
circumstances. An example of this is where there are no service stations that accept 
a Council operated fuel cards or during emergency situations, such as fuel 
shortages. The employee or associate must make every effort to seek out a service 
station that accepts a Council operated fuel card.  
 

Standard and duty of care: 
All Users must make sure they understand and abide by the policy and procedure to 
ensure correct usage of cards and safeguarding Users and SHDC. Users must raise with 
a Supervisor any concerns or clarifications required.  All Users have a duty of care not to 
let unauthorised people use the card and to prevent negligent use of the card and will be 
required to confirm all usage against the card under their responsibility.  The card should 
be kept in a safe place and should be reported to the Supervisor immediately if lost or 
stolen. 

 
 

Related documents 

• Fuel Card Procedure 

• Terms of Use Agreement 

• Jerry can equipment checklist 

• Tool, Equipment and Vehicle Monitoring Sheets 

Page 40



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Policy Development Panel 

DATE: 18 January 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Policy Development Panel Work Programme 

 

To set out the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: N/A 

REPORT OF: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Assistant Director Governance and Monitoring Officer – Mark 

Stinson 

Andrea Tait - Democratic Services Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No  

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel and allows the Panel 

to monitor it progress, and identify any additional items to be added to the Programme. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Panel gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 

discussion. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To allow Members to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the Work 

Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing 

 Page 41

Agenda Item 10.



1.  BACKGROUND 

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 

inclusion on its Work Programme.   

2. REPORT 

2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
 consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
 referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  The appendix will be updated as new 
 items are identified. 
 
2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
 shows: 
 

• The name of the task group 

• What it wants to achieve 

• Key dates 

• Membership of the task group 

• When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 It is hoped that in presenting the information to the Panel, and by having the report as a 

standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide 
the opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.  

 
4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide Panel 
Members with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items 
and proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.  
The Panel will scrutinise policies that cover all three councils within the partnership, in 
addition to those that apply only to SHDC. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1 None 

5.2 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, Members consider the 

suitability of the subject, taking into account considerations such as whether the issue is 

strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.   

5.3 STAFFING 

5.3.1 None 

5.4 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 None 

5.5 DATA PROTECTION Page 42



5.5.1 None 

5.6 FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 None 
 
5.7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 None 

5.8 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 None 

5.9 REPUTATION 

5.9.1 None 

5.10 CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None 

5.11 CRIME AND DISORDER 

5.11.1 None 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None 

5.13 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1  None 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Work Programme Calendar 2021/22 

APPENDIX B Task Group Work Programme 2021/22 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT Page 43



A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Andrea Tait, Democratic Services Officer, 

atait@sholland.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Mark Stinson, Assistant Director – Governance and 

Monitoring Officer 

Approved for publication: N/A 

 

 

Page 44

mailto:atait@sholland.gov.uk


 
APPENDIX A 

 
Policy Development Panel – Calendar of Work Programme items 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda items 

18 Jan 2022 • Policy Register – standing agenda item.   

• Fuel Card Policy (deferred from 16/11/21 meeting) 
27 Jan 2022 
Joint 
PMP/PDP  

Budget Scrutiny 

23 Mar 2022 • Policy Register – standing agenda item.  

• Workforce Development Strategy 

• Lincolnshire Discretionary Housing Assistance Policy 

• Safeguarding Policy  

• Various ICT Policies  

• Consideration of the FOI Policy  

• Unreasonable Behaviour and Vexatious Policy 

• Consideration of the Untidy Sites Policy Document Handbook 

• Planning Reform (if any information to report, update to be provided 
by the Planning and Building Control Manager) 

• Update on the Asset Management Strategy Policy (requested at 
16/11/21 meeting) 

 
 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date to 
report back to Panel 

South Holland Centre 
Task Group 

To review the historic operation of the 
SHC, examine the proposals, consider 
other activities, uses and operation that 
may be possible to help inform the task 
group in making recommendations to 
enable the Centre to serve the public and 
ensure a viable future. 
 

8 September 
2021 

28 
September2021 

B Alcock (Chair) 
F Biggadike 
P Redgate 
S Walsh 
D Wilkinson 
A Woolf 
A Newton (Co-
Optee) 

TBC 
To be presented to a 
Joint PMP/PDP meeting, 
prior to Cabinet. 

Street Art Wall Task 
Group 

Scope to be agreed at first meeting (20 
January 2022) 

14 December 
2021 

20 January 
2022 

HJW Bingham 
R A Gibson 
J D McLean 
P A Redgate 
GTD Rudkin 

TBC 

 
PENDING TASK GROUPS 

 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date to 
report back to Panel 

Devolution Task Group Executive Manager Governance to set 
Terms of Reference once White Paper 
published 

23 June 2020 TBC TBC  

Data Protection/Data 
Retention Task Group 

To consider the implications of 
forthcoming changes to the Data 
Protection Policy as follows: 

• To develop the new policy in light of 
issues raised in the gap analysis and 
legislative changes and that a more 

3 October 
2017 

11 December 
2017 

H Drury 
M D McLean 
A R Woolf 
(Chairman) 
A Harrison  

To PDP 1 May 2018  
To Cabinet 29 May 2018 

P
age 47



detailed suggested scope would be 
circulated prior to the first Task Group 
meeting. 

Planning Design  To consider the draft Supplementary 
Planning Design document and how 
design issues raised (including those 
arising from the Performance Monitoring 
Panel’s Review of Implemented Planning 
Decisions tour) could be addressed within 
the document; and 
That the Task Group’s recommendations 
be incorporated into the draft 
Supplementary Planning Document, to be 
considered by the Policy Development 
Panel, with final agreement by the South 
East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning 
Committee 
Scope agreed at first Task Group 
meeting 28 January 2020 

25 June 2019 28 January 
2020 
 

J Astill (Chair) 
J L King 
P A Redgate 
J L Reynolds  
S C Walsh 

Final Report to PDP 23 
June 2020. 
Further work to be 
undertaken with updated 
final report to a future 
meeting once direction 
has been clarified with 
regard to the 
Government White 
Paper on Planning 
Reform 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Task Group 

Scope to be agreed at first meeting of the 
Task Group.   
Task Group to consider the facts on the 
CIL, and findings to be fed into 
Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) 
 

24 
September 
2019 
Reconsidered 
21/1/20 

To run at same 
time as Planning 
Design Task 
Group-findings 
to be fed into 
SPD. 
Work to 
commence once 
direction has 
been clarified 
with regard to  
Government 
White Paper on 
Planning 
Reform 

Avery 
Drury 
McLean  
Woolf 

 

 

P
age 48


	Agenda
	2.a) Policy Development Panel
	2.b) Special Policy Development Panel
	7. Key Decision Plan
	8. Policy Register
	SHDC Policy Register
	Partnership Policy Register - SHDC v2
	Partnership Policy Register


	9. Fuel Card Policy
	Appendix A Fuel Card Policy

	10. Policy Development Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


